
If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 

Council Offices, 
Urban Road, 

Kirkby in Ashfield 
Nottingham 
NG17 8DA 

 

Agenda 
 
Standards and Personnel Appeals 
Committee 
 
 

Date: Monday, 12th December, 2016 

Time: 6.30 pm 

Venue: 
Committee Room, Council Offices, Urban Road,  
Kirkby-in-Ashfield 

  

For any further information please contact: 
 

Alan Maher 
 

a.maher@ashfield-dc.gov.uk 
 

01623 457318 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

STANDARDS AND PERSONNEL APPEALS COMMITTEE 

Membership 

 

Chairman: Councillor Lauren Mitchell 

 
Councillors:  
Amanda Brown Steve Carroll 
Jackie James Cathy Mason 
Lachlan Morrison Phil Rostance 
Helen-Ann Smith Jason Zadrozny 

 
 
 

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries 
regarding this, please contact Democratic Services on 01623 457318. 
 

SUMMONS 
 
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Standards and Personnel Appeals 
Committee to be held at the time/place and on the date mentioned above for the purpose 
of transacting the business set out below. 
 

  
R. Mitchell 
Chief Executive 



 

 

AGENDA Page 
 
1.   To Receive Apologies for Absence  

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Disclosable and Non Disclosable / Pecuniary 
Other Interests  
 
 

 

3.   Minutes  
 
 

5 - 10 

4.   Members' Remuneration Scheme: Performance Related Element  
 
 

11 - 18 

5.   Members’ Code of Conduct - Declarations of Interest  
 
 

19 - 56 

6.   Draft Member Development Strategy  
 
 

57 - 70 

7.   Quarterly Complaints Monitoring Report  
 
 

71 - 76 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

STANDARDS AND PERSONNEL APPEALS COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting held in the Committee Room, Council Offices, Urban Road, Kirkby-in-Ashfield, 
 

on Monday, 10th October, 2016 at 6.30 pm 
 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor Lauren Mitchell in the Chair; 

 Councillors Amanda Brown, Steve Carroll, 
Jackie James, Cathy Mason, Lachlan Morrison, 
Phil Rostance and Jason Zadrozny. 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Helen-Ann Smith. 
 

Officers Present: Beth Brown, Mike Joy and Alan Maher. 

 
 
 
 

SP.06 Declarations of Disclosable and Non-Disclosable Pecuniary / Other 
Interests 
 

 No Declarations of Interest were received. 
 

 
SP.07 Minutes 

 
 RESOLVED 

 
The minutes of the Standards and Personnel Appeals Committee held on 25 
July 2016 be received and approved as a true record. 
 

 
SP.08 Draft Member Development Strategy 

 
 Members were reminded that at its last meeting the Committee discussed the 

Council’s approach to Member training and development. It was explained that 
since May 2015 the focus for the development programme had been on 
providing a general introduction to the different Member roles; especially for 
those who had been elected for the first time. Valuable as this had been, the 
Committee thought that a more targeted approach should now be adopted, 
with the aim of meeting the specific development requirements of individual 
Councillors. 
 
There was a consensus that Member Development was important both to 
individual Councillors and to the Council as a whole in terms of helping to 
ensure that it operates effectively. This is reflected in the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 2016-2019.The Committee emphasised just how important it was to help 
Members gain the knowledge and skills they require to carry out their roles. It 
was also important for them to understand what the consequences are likely to 
be when they do not understand these roles, behave inappropriately or take 
the wrong decisions. These risks were seen as especially significant, when 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Members have to carry out their regulatory or quasi-judicial functions, such as 
considering and deciding on planning applications.  
 
The report to Committee set out the draft Member Development Strategy, 
which brought together a range of proposals on how a more targeted approach 
to training and development could be achieved. In particular, it argued that the 
process for identifying development needs ought to be Member-led. The 
strategy suggested that an annual training needs survey could be introduced. 
If adopted, Councillors would be asked to say what learning and development 
activities they had found effective. It would also ask them what they thought 
their priorities for learning and development would be over the coming year.  
 
There was a lot of support for Members feeding back their experience of these 
training events. This would be a way of providing benchmark information that 
would save the Council money by ensuring that Members were not booked on 
courses that had already proved not to be suitable. The Committee heard and 
discussed examples of how this type of feedback from training courses works 
in other authorities. 
 
The Committee felt it important that training be made as accessible as 
possible, including for those Members who work or who cannot attend during 
the day time because of care commitments. They welcomed the proposal that 
the Members e-learning facility ought to be enhanced and developed as a 
practical way of extending the way in which Members receive training, rather 
than just relying on them to attend training sessions. 
 
Members discussed how the training budget for Member Development is 
currently allocated. A range of options were considered. These included 
consideration of a possible threshold or upper cost limit for any training activity 
for individual Members. The Committee also discussed whether the Member 
Development budget should be allocated on a pro rata basis between the 
different groups or whether it would be better to target funding on meeting 
specific training requirements.  Some Members of the Committee felt that 
further discussion was required on this and suggested that the issue be raised 
at a future Group Leaders Meeting. 
 
Members then considered various options for delivering training and 
development. In this context, there was a lot of support for working with 
neighbouring authorities to run joint training sessions etc.  They felt that this 
would be more cost effective and also potentially better for individual 
Members; especially if they could then share and discuss their experiences 
with colleagues from other local authorities. 
 
There was an extensive discussion about whether Members who had received 
relevant training from other local authorities should also be required to attend 
similar training course required by the Council – for instance on safeguarding. 
Some saw this as a practical way of making use of these opportunities which 
would reduce the costs to Ashfield. Others felt that it would be better if all 
Councillors received the same training provided by the Council to ensure that 
they received training of the same quality.  
 
At the end of the discussion the Committee agreed that the Monitoring Officer 
explore further the possibility of ‘dual hatted’ Members (or those who serve on 

Page 6



 

Ashfield and another local authority) only attending required training at one or 
the other authority rather than at both of them. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

a) That the Committee’s comments be forwarded to the Monitoring 
Officers for inclusion in the draft Member Development Strategy; 

 
b) That the Committee considers a revised draft of the strategy at its next 

meeting (12 December 2016). 

 
Reasons 
The Member Development Strategy will help to ensure that we focus our 
resources and make the best use of Members’ time. 
 

 
SP.09 Disclosure and Barring Services for Councillors 

 
 Members next considered a report on Disclosure of Barring Service (DBS) 

checks for Councillors.  This explained that Councillors had not been required 
to have DBS checks, especially those in district local authorities with no 
responsibility for children’s services or adult social care. However, many 
councils have now decided to carry out DBS checks for all of their Members, 
often as a way of providing reassurance to the public. A similar approach, it 
was suggested, would help to improve public confidence in Ashfield also.  
 
Members discussed the report. During this discussion they made it clear that 
they supported DBS checks for all Councillors. They recognised that there 
were often instances when they can find themselves in contact with vulnerable 
people and that it would provide reassurance to the public and individual 
constituents if they could be assured that their elected Members had been 
DBS checked. 
 
The Committee explored how the DBS checking process might work and in 
particular, what could be done if certain Members decided that they did not 
wish to apply for a DBS check. Members heard that in neighbouring local 
authorities these objections were usually resolved as a matter of internal group 
discipline or persuasion rather than as matter for the authority. It was expected 
that a similar approach was likely to happen in Ashfield. The Committee 
thought that this would be appropriate. 
 
Members also discussed what would be the most appropriate level of DBS 
check. The report recommended that they should each receive the Enhanced 
level of DBS check. After a debate, the Committee concluded that this would 
be disproportionate and that an appropriate level of assurance could be 
provided through the less expensive Standard check. The Committee agreed 
that the proposal should be recommended to Council on that basis. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

a) The Committee recommends to Council that all Councillors receive 

Page 7



 

‘Standard’ DBS checks, as set out in Paragraph 4(b) of the report; 

b) The Committee recommends to Council that the proposed Policy on 
Disclosure and Barring Service ‘DBS’ checks for Councillors and Co-
opted Members as appended to the report be adopted. 

Reasons 
In order to protect those who are most vulnerable in society and to help 
strengthen public confidence. 
 

 
SP.10 Members with other Roles which might Conflict with their Role as a 

Councillor 
 

 The Committee was reminded that it had asked for a draft guidance note be 
prepared, in order to help those Councillors with external roles or interests, to 
recognise and avoid any conflicts of interest.  
 
Members were asked to consider the draft guidance note. During the 
discussion, the Committee reiterated its concerns about the problems that can 
be caused when a Member’s role as a District Councillor becomes blurred with 
other roles that they might have, such as a Councillor for another local 
authority or as part of the support staff for a Member of Parliament. It was 
argued that this can confuse local people; for example by blurring who was 
actually responsible for dealing with any issues that they had raised.  
 
The Committee felt it important that there should be transparency about 
different roles. Members must always be clear when they are acting in their 
capacity as a District Councillor and when they are acting in another capacity 
(for instance, not using their Ashfield District Council email accounts for work 
related to their employment.) 
 
In this context the Committee discussed the arrangements for dealing with MP 
enquiries. These arrangements had been recently revised in order to provide a 
single point of contact for parliamentarians. This would, it was felt, help to 
provide greater clarity and to prevent confusion over roles.  
 
Members also felt that it would be helpful if there was clarity about how 
enquiries from Councillors of other local authorities are dealt with.  Again, it 
was felt that the status of these requests should be made explicit and handled 
centrally. The Committee thought the best approach would be to ask County 
Councillors and others to channel their enquiries through the Council’s existing 
Members Enquiry Service. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Committee approves the guidance note, subject to inclusion of 
arrangements for dealing with enquiries from those in their capacity as 
representatives of other local authorities through the Members Enquiry 
Service. 
 
Reasons 
To help promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members. 
 

Page 8



 

 
SP.11 Quarterly Complaints Update 

 
 The report to Committee provided information on complaints of alleged 

Member misconduct and the progress which had been made in assessing 
them for the period 16 July 2016 to 30 September 2016. 
 
Members heard that since the report had been prepared there had been 
further developments on the first case. Briefly, it was explained that it was now 
hoped that the case could be resolved on the basis of local resolution and so 
not require a formal hearing. 
 
The Committee discussed extensively this case. In particular, Members were 
concerned about the length of time that it had taken to investigate and resolve 
it, with the associated costs that this involved. Some Members suggested that 
other authorities are able to deal with complaints more quickly. The Committee 
was also concerned that a local resolution was only now being proposed. 
Members felt that this should happen at the start of the complaints process 
rather than at the end. The Committee felt that there would be advantages of 
making this a firm provision in the policy. It was agreed to pass this suggestion 
to the Monitoring Officer. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Committee notes the updated position in respect of Members’ Code 
of Conduct Complaints for the period 16 July 2016 to 30 September 2016. 
 
Reasons 
To reflect good practice.  
 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.15 pm  
 

 
 
Chairman. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Report To: 
STANDARDS AND 
PERSONNEL APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 

Date: 12 DECEMBER 2016 

Heading: 
MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION SCHEME: PERFORMANCE 
RELATED ELEMENT 

Portfolio Holder: N/A 

Ward/s:  N/A 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject To Call-In: NO 

Purpose Of Report 
 

To inform the Committee of the new performance element of the Members’ Remuneration 
Scheme and the role that the Committee will play in determining the payment of the 
performance related allowance. 
 
 
 

Recommendation(s) 

The Committee is asked to consider the suggested process for determining the 

payment of the performance related element of the Members’ Allowance. The 

Committee may wish to consider seeking the views of the Cross Party Update Meeting 

before making a final recommendation to the Council.  

 

Reasons For Recommendation(s) 

 
To ensure a clear and transparent process to determine the payment of the performance 
element of the Members’ Allowance. 
  
 

Alternative Options Considered (With Reasons Why Not Adopted) 

 
The Committee may wish to consider alternative approaches to determine the payment of the 
performance element of the Members’ Allowance. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Detailed Information 
 

Members will recall that the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) met earlier this year to 
review the Members’ Allowance Scheme. The new Scheme was approved at Council in July 
2016.  
 
The function of an allowances scheme is to provide support to Members so they are able to 
carry out their roles and responsibilities without incurring undue personal costs or loss of 
earnings. The IRP reported that Members felt there was an inequity in the fact that Members 
received the same basic allowance regardless of their workloads. The IRP suggested that the 
simplest metric by which to gauge additional effort is attendance at meetings; attendance at 
meetings being simple to measure. The IRP felt that if a Member does not attend the majority 
of their scheduled meetings and training events they are not representing the interests of their 
constituents and the Council in general to the best of their ability. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the IRP, the new Members’ Allowance Scheme includes an 
element which relates to performance. The Basic Allowance was reduced by £500 per 
annum, the £500 per member was reassigned as a Performance Special Responsibility 
Allowance to be paid to all Members who attend 70% of all their formal meetings (these being 
all meetings of the Council and all meetings of the Committees and Sub-Committees to which 
Members are appointed by the Council) together with all training made mandatory in 
accordance with the Constitution and included in the Code of Conduct. An extract of the IRP’s 
report is attached as Appendix A. 
 
This Committee was given the remit to account for genuine or excused absences set out 
as: 
 

 Illness/physical incapacity 

 Family/domestic emergency 

 Officially representing the Council in another forum, in other words outside bodies as 
detailed in the Constitution 

 
The IRP’s report sets out that the following are NOT to be accepted as excused absences: 
 

 Work commitments 

 Representing another local authority such as Nottinghamshire County Council or a 
Parish Council 

 Representing their constituents 

 Simply sending apologies without a reason 

 Holidays 
 
The Council resolved that the performance element of the allowance should be implemented 
from 29 May 2017 and the period of assessment running to the AGM the following year in 
May 2018. The performance element year will then continue thereafter starting at each AGM 
and ending the following May. 
 
Mandatory Training 
 
In accordance with the Constitution the following are classed as “mandatory” and will be taken 
into account in the calculation of 70% attendance: 
 

 Planning  

 Safeguarding  

 Licensing Committee and its Sub- Committees  Page 12



 Lone worker training  

 Code of Conduct Training  

 Chief Officers Employment Committee  

 Standards Committee Training  

 Equalities  
 
The required frequency of training will require determination before the process is finalised to 
ensure it is clear what each Member’s mandatory training requirement is each year. 
 
Process for Payment of the Performance Allowances 
 

 Members are required to provide reasons for every absence (meetings and mandatory 
training) to Democratic Services 

 Failure to provide a reason will lead to the absence being noted as “not excused” 

 Democratic Services will collate the attendance data. The data will be presented to the 
Committee annually in June 

 The data presented to Committee will include for each Member the number of 
expected attendances, the number of absences, whether these are excused absences 
or not (in line with the definition set by the IRP and outlined above) and the percentage 
attendance highlighting where attendance is at 70% or above and 69% and below 

 The Committee will be required to review the data and approve the Members to whom 
the £500 performance related pay is to be awarded 

 Democratic Services will thereafter instruct Payroll to make performance related 
payments as approved by the Committee 

 
For clarity, excused absences will not be taken into account when calculating the level of 
attendance, whereas absences which are not for excused reasons will be taken into account. 
 
It is not considered feasible for Democratic Services or the Committee to look behind the 
reasons given, the onus is on each Member to accurately report reasons for absence in a 
timely manner. The Committee may wish to consider setting a deadline for the submission of 
absence reasons to Democratic Services. 
 
To enable individual Members and Groups to monitor attendance on a regular basis, it is 
recommended that a quarterly update report will be provided to each Member and their Group 
Leader. This will enable advance notice of attendance levels and an opportunity to check 
reasons for absence in a timely manner. 
 
Members are reminded that by virtue of section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 if a 
Member fails throughout a period of 6 consecutive months from the date of the last 
attendance at a meeting of the authority, he/she shall cease to be a member of the authority 
unless the reason for the failure to attend has been approved by the Council.  
 
 
Implications 

 
Corporate Plan:  
 

The Council will strive to ensure effective community leadership, through good governance, 
transparency, accountability and appropriate behaviours. 

 
 
 

Page 13



Legal: 
 
 

The Council adopted a revised Scheme in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (as amended) and was 
recommended by the appointed Independent Remuneration Panel.  

 
Finance: 

This report is effective from 21/07/2016 and has the following financial implications: 
 

 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

 
General Fund – Revenue Budget 

Failure to meet the required attendance by a Member 
would result in the withholding of a £500 Performance 
Related Payment. The maximum amount payable by 
the Authority would be £17,500 (35 Members @ £500 
per Member). For the sake of prudence, it is assumed 
that all Members will attain the necessary performance 
level to receive the Performance Related payment, and 
the budget for 2017/18 has assumed payment to all 
Members. 
 

 
General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

N/A 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

N/A 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

N/A 

Human Resources / Equality and Diversity: 
 

A record of training undertaken will be held by the HR Shared Service. Payment of 
allowances will comply with the approved arrangement. 

 
Other Implications: 
 

 
None. 

 
Reason(s) for Urgency (if applicable): 
 

N/A 

Page 14



 
Background Papers 
 

Independent Remuneration Panel Report – July 2016 
 

 
Report Author and Contact Officer 

Ruth Dennis 
Assistant Chief Executive (Governance)  
& Monitoring Officer 
01623 457009 
r.dennis@ashfield-dc.gov.uk 
 
Rob Mitchell 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

Page 15

mailto:r.dennis@ashfield-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 
Rewarding effort through a Performance SRA 

 
1. It is clear there is a sense of inequity in the fact that all Members receive the 

same Basic Allowance regardless of their workloads. Due to the 
representations made the Panel has decided that a lower Basic Allowance 
should be paid with a compensating SRA linked to extra demonstrable effort. 
In other words, all Members will continue to receive a BA and Performance SRA 
that equates to the current BA of £6,800 as long as they can demonstrate they 
are putting in the effort. 
 

2. The simplest metric by which to gauge additional effort is attendance at 
meetings. While attending meetings is not the sole focus of a Members' work it 
is an important one that can be measured. If a Member is not attending the 
majority of their scheduled meetings and training events they are not 
representing the interests of their constituents and the council in general to the 
best of their ability. 
 

3. The Panel considered a number of approaches that had varying degrees of 
complexity and flexibility but opted for the most straightforward approach in 
order to get the principle adopted, which can be reviewed and refined in light of 
experience and subsequent feedback to the Panel. Thus the Panel proposes 
that the Basic Allowance is reduced by £500 to £6,300 and the £500 per 
Member savings be re-assigned as a 'Performance SRA' to be paid to all 
Members who attend 70% of all their formal meetings, including all compulsory 
/ statutory training events. 

 
4. The Panel recommends that all Members who attend at least 70% of all 

their scheduled meetings and compulsory training events each year are 
paid an annual SRA of £500 in arrears starting in 2017/18.  
 

5. The Panel also recommends that the Standards and Personnel (Appeals) 
Committee (or some other committee or persons as agreed by the 
Council) be given the remit to account for genuine or 'excused' absences, 
such as 
 

 Illness/physical incapacity 

 Family/domestic emergency 

 Officially representing the Council in another forum e.g., 
Nottinghamshire PCP or Nottinghamshire Leaders Board or any other 
approved duties detailed in the Constitution under “Outside Bodies” 

 
6. The Panel is clear that an excused absence should be defined in such a way 

so it excludes work commitments. The Basic Allowance is in place for a time 
commitment of just under 70 days per year at a rate of remuneration based on 
average wages in Ashfield. It provides a compensation for Members to enable 
them to take up to 70 days per year off work. If work commitments were to 
constitute an excused absence it in effects pays Members twice. Similarly 
representing constituents should not be an excused absence - this aspect of a 

Page 17



Members' work has always been conceptualised as part of the voluntary service 
element. Likewise, sending apologies should not be an excused absence. 

Page 18



   

 

Report To: 
STANDARDS AND 
PERSONNEL APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 

Date: 12 DECEMBER 2016 

Heading: 
MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT – DECLARATIONS OF 
INTEREST 

Portfolio Holder: N/A 

Ward/s:  N/A 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject To Call-In: NO 

 
Purpose Of Report 
 
To invite the Committee to consider whether the Council should amend the Council’s Code of 
Conduct, and making it necessary for Councillors to declare membership of secret societies, 
private clubs or societies, charities or trade unions. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

 
The Committee is requested to consider the information within the report and reach a 

decision as to whether the Code of Conduct would benefit from amendment to make it 

necessary for Councillors to declare membership of secret societies, private clubs or 

societies, charities or trade unions. If so, to recommend an amended Code of Conduct 

to Council for approval. 

Reasons For Recommendation(s) 

 
The Council requires openness and transparency of all its elected members. The Register of 
Members’ Interests requires Members to complete when elected and to update throughout 
their term, any interest which is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and which may affect their 
decision making 
 

Alternative Options Considered (With Reasons Why Not Adopted) 

 
In order to ensure that Members are recording all necessary interests it is appropriate to 
periodically review the Code of Conduct, the Members’ Register of Interests and all legal 
requirements as to declarations of interests. This has not been reviewed for two years and it 
was considered appropriate for this to be considered at this time following a request to add 
this to the Committee’s work programme. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 
Detailed Information 
 

 
The Localism Act 2011 abolished the Standards Board and Regime and brought in new 
standards arrangements.  
 
The new legislation means that it is largely for councils to determine what arrangements and 
Code of Conduct to put in place. 
 
The current Code of Conduct requires members to declare an interest which is either a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs), a Non Disclosable Pecuniary or Other interest.   
 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
DPIs are defined by law and is an interest in relation to a member if it is of a description specified 
in The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) Regulation and either ;- 

(a) It is an interest of the member’s; or  
(b) It is an interest of (i) the Members spouse or civil partner, (ii) a person whom a Member 

is living with as husband and wife, or (iii) a person whom a Member is living with as if 
they were civil partners, and the Member is aware that the other person has the interest.  
 

A failure to register a DPI is an offence under the Localism Act 2011, and a breach of the Code 
of Conduct.  
 
The DPI should be included on the Members’ Register of Interests and declared in any meeting 
where a matter arises which related to a DPI. The Member must not participate on the 
discussion or vote on the matters and must withdraw from the meeting room unless a 
dispensation has been sought and granted.  
 
 
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests 
 

 
A “Non Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest” should be declared in an item of 
business of the Authority where: 
 
(a) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-
being or financial standing of you, or a member of your family, or a person with whom you have 
a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the majority of the inhabitants of the 
ward or electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area; or 
(b) it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests listed in Appendix A to this Code, but in 
respect of a member of your family (other than your spouse, civil partner or person with whom 
you are living as spouse or civil partner) or person with whom you have a close association 
 
and that interest is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 
 
 
Issues for the Committee to consider 
 
In considering whether the Members’ Code of Conduct should be amended the Committee may 
be mindful that current required declarations are standard and used widely across all local 
authorities. It is for the individual member to decide if an interest is a DPI, a Non Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest or any Other Interest and for that member to then declare where necessary Page 20



 
The membership of “secret societies”, private clubs or societies, charities or trade unions is not 
currently an interest which has to be declared in this manner at Ashfield District Council. 
However any personal interest which may influence or have bearing on a Member’s decision 
must be disclosed at a meeting as discussed above.  
 
Whether it is necessary to have a specific requirement for Members to declare membership of 
a “secret society”, private club or society, charity or trade union is open to each individual 
authority to determine.  
 
There is no common practice and the approach varies substantially across authorities, and 
there are various definitions adopted by local authorities as to what would constitute a “secret 
society” and require declaration.  
 
By way of example: 
 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council asks members to declare a personal interest of 
any body “which is a private club or society, such as the Freemasons, a recreational club, 
working men’s club or private investment club of which you are a member of in a position of 
general control or management”  
 
A copy of the Members Register of Interest for Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Councils which 
sets out how this requirement has been incorporated into the Register is attached as Appendix 
1 along with a copy of their Member Code of Conduct.  
 
Manchester City Council asks members to declare a personal interest in Charities, Societies 
and any bodies and specifically requests that “Freemasons should include membership of the 
Masonic Grand Charity” and bodies whose principal purposes “include the influence of public 
policy, including party associations, trade union or professional association.”    
 
A copy of the Members’ Register of Interest for Manchester City Council which sets out how 
this requirement has been incorporated into the Register is attached as Appendix 2.  
 
A neighbouring authority Derbyshire County Council has specifically requested that Members 
declare “any trade union of which you are a member and membership of pressure groups, the 
Freemasons or other influential bodies of which you are a member.”  
 
A Copy of Derbyshire County Council’s Member Code of Conduct which demonstrates how this 
is incorporated into their Code is attached as Appendix 3.  
 
Freemasons 
 
With regards to Freemasons specifically there has been a European Court of Human Rights 
case in 2007 which found that Freemasonry did not meet the definition of a secret society.  – 
[Grande Orienta D’Itallia do Palazzzo Glustiniani v Italy (no 2) (application no 26740/02)]. 
 
This case concerned the Italian Grand Lodge which is the Italian equivalent of the Free masons 
and in that case there was a challenge to the policy that candidates were required to declare 
whether they were members of a Masonic or secret association. The absence of a declaration 
constituted a ground for refusal of appointment. 
 
Any proposed amendment to the code would need to show that Freemasons were not being 
disadvantaged  and that Freemasons would not be treated differently from the members of any 
other body that revised wording would seek to include. 
 
 Page 21



One common theme amongst authorities is that membership of certain groups should be 
declared as a personal interest, if this was a charitable body for charitable purposes. E.g 
Freemasons who are members of the Grand Charity should declare an interest as appropriate, 
before or during council meetings. In addition if an individual lodge is one with charitable status 
or could be described as a body directed towards charitable purposes, then membership of that 
lodge would also need to be declared.  
 
Under the Code of Conduct Members are also required to declare membership of groups whose 
political purpose includes the influence of public or opinion or policy, which could included 
freemasons, trade unions, or pressure groups.  
 
 
Committee will need to consider the current Code of Conduct, the DPIs which are legally 
required to be disclosed on the Members’ Register of Interests, Other Interests which are 
disclosed at meetings and determine if membership of a “secret society”, private club or society, 
charity or trade union should continue to be would be disclosed in accordance with the existing 
mechanisms, or whether something more specific, such as prior registration on a revised 
Members’ Register of Interests form should be required to ensure that the Members are open 
and transparent in conducting themselves.  
 
 
Corporate Plan:  
 
Consideration of this topic contributes towards our commitment to:  

 Place and Communities  

 Organisational Improvement  
 
The Council will strive to ensure effective community leadership, through good governance, 
transparency, accountability and appropriate behaviours.  
 
Legal: 
 
Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to promote and maintain high standards 
of conduct by Members and Co-opted Members of the Authority. Failure to have and 
maintain high ethical standards can have significant reputational consequences.  
 
 
Finance: 
 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report 
 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

 
General Fund – Revenue Budget 

 
None 

 
General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

 
None  

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

 
None 
 

Page 22



 
 
 
 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

None 

Human Resources / Equality and Diversity: 

It is a reasonable request for members to disclose membership of a secret society through 
an appropriate mechanism to ensure that the Members are open and transparent in 
conducting themselves. 
 
Other Implications: 
 
None  

 
Reason(s) for Urgency (if applicable): 
 

N/A 
 

 
Background Papers 
 

N/A 
 

 
Report Author and Contact Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT OFFICER  
 
Vicky Dawson  
Senior Solicitor 
 
Ruth Dennis  
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (GOVERNANCE)  
& MONITORING OFFICER  
01623 457009  
r.dennis@ashfield-dc.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



   

 

Report To: 

STANDARDS AND 
PERSONNEL APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date: 12 DECEMBER 2016 

Heading: DRAFT MEMBER DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

Portfolio Holder:  

Ward/s:  NONE 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject To Call-In: NO 

Purpose Of Report 
 

The Member Development Strategy sets out a commitment from Ashfield District Council 
regarding training and development for Elected Members. It aims to provide guidance on how 
members will be supported and provided with learning and development opportunities to 
develop their skills and knowledge necessary to undertake their roles as community leaders 
and representatives of the Council.  
 
The draft Strategy was first discussed by Members on 10 October 2016. Following this 
discussion there has been further discussions with the Principal Learning & Development 
Adviser for Ashfield and Mansfield District Council’s to help develop some of the suggestions. 
In addition the issue of training budget thresholds has also been discussed at the Cross Party 
Update Meeting, whereby it was agreed that the process for Member training should not use 
budget thresholds as a determinate for accessing individual courses or training. 
 
The updated draft attached as Appendix A contains additional pro formas for identifying 
Member training and development needs, and post course evaluation. Furthermore the 
Strategy now includes an additional emphasis on e-learning as a possible tool for Members. 
 
Furthermore, following the approval of the Independent Remuneration Panel’s 
recommendations to Council on the 21 July 2016, the mandatory element of Member training 
will form part of the performance considerations effective form May 2017. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

 

Members of the Committee are asked to; 

 Consider the information contained in this report  

 Approve the draft Strategy attached as Appendix A, inclusive of the pro formas 

for pre and post training and the Annual Training Needs Survey. 

 Recommend to Council for approval. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



Reasons For Recommendation(s) 

 
Member development is important because it progresses the work of the Authority in a 
number of ways; it helps to increase and enrich members’ skills and knowledge; it helps to 
build a cohesive group of people who understand what it means to be a member; it ensures 
we focus our resources and make the best use of members’ time. 
 

Alternative Options Considered (With Reasons Why Not Adopted) 

 
The draft Member Development Strategy is for discussion only. Any alternative options or 
actions suggested will be considered as part of the wider development of a Strategy before 
approval. 
 
 
Detailed Information 
 

Background  
 
Local Authorities have an obligation to ensure that they support elected Members to provide 
and improve corporate governance, local democracy and local services. The Council 
recognises that members have a pivotal role in taking forward the modernisation agenda and 
that its success will depend on elected members having the capacity to provide the best 
possible service to their residents. 
 
All members whether newly elected or experienced will benefit from the opportunities 
available for specific learning and continuing development in order to fully appreciate and 
contribute to the dynamic service delivery agenda and to update and refresh the skills and 
knowledge required.  
 
All members need to understand the scope and scale of the role in order to be able to identify 
the personal development needs that will enable them to fulfil the ever increasing individual 
and political demands. 
 
The Different Roles of Members 
 
There is considerable overlap in the skills, knowledge and behaviours required of all Elected 
Members in their different roles. It is therefore helpful to identify at this stage the different 
roles that elected members have and for which they need to be equipped. 
 

 As members of Council 
 
Providing collective co-ordinated strategic direction to the policy framework of the 
Council including budgeting to meet strategic priorities. 

 

 As Cabinet Members 
 
Having a comprehensive understanding and knowledge of particular portfolios they 
hold as Executive Members and providing strategic direction within that portfolio. 
 
Providing collective leadership and direction as Cabinet members and ensuring a 
coordinated approach to policy and strategy development across the Council and with 
our partners. 

 
Page 58



 As Overview and Scrutiny members 
 
Providing constructive challenge as members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees to 
the strategic and policy development of the Council and its service performance to 
support the Council in delivering its strategic objectives. 

 

 As members of Regulatory Committees  
 
Carrying out the regulatory functions of the Council in a fair and proper manner, 
consistent with legal obligations. 
 

 As Opposition Members 
 
Providing constructive challenge as opposition Members to the strategic and policy 
development of the Council and its service performance to support the Council in 
delivering its strategic objectives. 
 

Improving identification and assessment of training requirements will provide additional 
governance to the democratic process and ensure that Elected Members gain the necessary 
skills to carry out their role effectively. 
 
Implications 

Corporate Plan:  
 
This Corporate Plan 2016 -2019 identify a clear commitment to Councillors, stating; 

 We value the democratic role that Councillors have in representing the people of 
Ashfield; 

 The Council recognises that the role of a Councillor is challenging and will support 
Councillors with training to help them deliver their roles; 

 
Legal: 
 
There are no legal implications contained within this report. 

 
Finance: 

The cost of training identified is to be met from the existing Training & Development budget 
for members of £10,000.  
 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

General Fund – Revenue Budget None 

General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

N/A 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

N/A 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

N/A 

 
 
 
 

Page 59



Human Resources / Equality and Diversity: 
 
Ongoing work will be undertaken with Human Resources regarding the development of a 
Strategy to ensure that it meets the needs of all Members in carrying out their role. 
 
Member learning and development activities are open for all Members to attend and it is 
intended that all such activities should be equally accessible and conform to the Council’s 
equal opportunities policy and practice.   

 
In recognition of the varying development needs and preferred learning styles, the member 
development programme will include a range of delivery methods including workshops, 
presentations, written resources, and e-learning. In considering the development and 
approval of a Member Development Strategy, an Equality Impact Assessment will need to be 
undertaken. 
 
Other Implications: 
 
None 
 
 
Reason(s) for Urgency (if applicable): 
 

None 

 
Background Papers 
 

Corporate Plan 
Ashfield and Mansfield Economic Masterplan 

 
Report Author and Contact Officer 

Ruth Dennis, Assistant Chief Executive, Governance 
Tel: 01623 457009 
Email: r.dennis@ashfield.gov.uk 
 
 
Rob Mitchell 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 60

mailto:r.dennis@ashfield.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
Appendix A  
 
 

 
 

Draft Member Development Strategy for Discussion 
 

 
Ashfield District Council recognise that to succeed in delivering high quality, cost effective services to 
the people of Ashfield, it needs well motivated, proactive Councillors with the skills and expertise to drive 
forward the Council’s agenda.  
 
Continuous member development is key to achieving this as all Councillors have a responsibility to learn 
new skills in line with the ongoing changes in local government. The overarching aim of the strategy is, 
therefore, to ensure that there is support for all members to enable them to acquire sufficient knowledge 
and a full range of skills to maximise their ability and capacity.  
 
Arising from this overarching aim the Council has identified the following principles that will underpin 
how member development is delivered.  
 

 Members will be offered opportunities to acquire the knowledge, skills and expertise they need to 
perform their roles effectively.  

 Members will be encouraged to take responsibility for and actively seek opportunities for their 
own learning and development.  

 Training and development applies to all members, even those that have been members for some 
time and feel that there is nothing new to learn.  

 Members who take advantage of the opportunities available will be actively encouraged and 
supported.  

 
This strategy sets out how the overarching aim will be achieved using these principles as the basis for 
doing so, for example in how access to learning will be ensured. 
 
 

 
This Corporate Plan 2016 -2019 sets out an ambitious programme for the Council over the next 
three years. It identifies our purpose as; 

 The Council exists to serve the communities and residents of Ashfield; 

 We will provide good quality, value for money services; 

 We will act strategically and plan for the future. 
 
The Values identify a clear commitment to Councillors, stating; 
 

 
Introduction 

 

 
Strategic Context 

 

Page 61



 We value the democratic role that Councillors have in representing the people of Ashfield; 

 The Council recognises that the role of a Councillor is challenging and will support 
Councillors with training to help them deliver their roles; 

 The Council will ensure that there is good governance in our democratic processes; 

 The Council will keep Councillors of all political parties updated on key issues. 
 

 
This Strategy is designed to provide an overall framework for member development that reflects 
best practice and achieves the following objectives: 
 

 Provide a range of learning opportunities linked to skills required by Councillors for 
them to carry out their varied duties; 

 Support and enhance the skills of all Elected Members through learning and development; 

 Provide equality of opportunity and access to training and development for all 
Councillors; 

 Encourage all members to take advantage of the learning and development opportunities 
available; 

 Ensure that all newly elected members are properly inducted into the Council; 

 Raise the profile of Ashfield by ensuring each member has access to training and 
development which will improve the quality of their role and the service they give to the 
public; 

 Provide training and development at different times and in different ways to suit the 
diverse needs of Councillors; 

 Contribute to the Council’s corporate priorities through learning and development. 
 

 
Councillors have personal, individual and collective responsibilities for their council’s activities. In 
addition, as members of political groups or as independents, Councillors will express political values 
and support the policies of the group to which they belong.  

Councillors who are Committee/Panel Chairs or Portfolio Holders have more specialised roles in 
promoting particular policies, representing the council while at the same time working with other 
agencies to tackle issues. Members roles include; 
 

Representing the ward 
 
The primary role of a member is to represent their ward and the people who live in it. They also 
have a responsibility to communicate Council policy and decisions to people in the ward. 

 
Decision-making 

 
Members have a central part to play in making decisions that impact on their ward and across the 
whole area covered by the Council. They will be involved in decision-making through: 

 

 Council 

 
Aim of the Strategy 

 

 
Roles of Elected Members 

 

Page 62



 Cabinet (Cabinet Members only) 

 Regulatory committees such as Planning or Licensing 

 Sitting on boards and other groups as appointed to outside bodies 
 
 
Policy and strategy development and review 
 
Members influence and determine the development and review of the Council’s policies and 
strategies. They also monitor the Council’s performance. They contribute to this through their: 

 

 Role in Overview and Scrutiny 

 Involvement in advisory groups and partnerships 

 Interaction with Cabinet Members 

 Role as a representative on local community groups 

 Case work 

 Membership of a political group. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny role of Members includes: 

 

 Monitoring and reviewing policy formulation and implementation 

 Policy development 

 Quality review  

 Scrutiny of external bodies and agencies 

 Providing a check on the activities of the Cabinet through call-in powers 
 

Regulatory Duties 
 

Local authorities also act as regulators within certain functions and Members may be appointed to 
special committees that carry out these functions, such as standards, planning and licensing 
committees. In these roles, members are required to act independently and are not subject to the 
party group whip. Regulatory committees require Members to undertake mandatory training to carry 
out the regulatory function of those committees.  
 
Currently Members are required to undertake the following mandatory training; 
 

 Planning 

 Licensing (and its sub-committees) 

 Standards and Personnel Appeals Committee (and its hearing sub-committee) 

 Chief Officers sub committee 

 Safeguarding 

 Code of Conduct 

 Ethical Governance 

 Equalities and Diversity 

 Any other training that the Council deems as required 
 

Community Leadership and Engagement 
 

Community leadership is at the heart of modern local government and councils are taking on new 
responsibilities for working in partnership with other organisations, including the voluntary and 
community sector, to improve services and the quality of life of citizens. 

Page 63



 
The process for identifying Members’ development needs and priorities will be Member-lead with 
officers bringing to Members’ attention any training which is beneficial in carrying out their role. 
Learning and development priorities will also be assessed collectively in relation to the needs of 
specific committees and legislative and regulatory requirements.  
 
Members will be asked to complete a Training Needs Survey each year to identify what learning 
and development activities they have found to be effective and to assess what priorities they have 
for learning and development in the next year.  This will then be used to develop and deliver the 
Member Development Training Plan. 

 
In identifying their priority learning and development needs, Members will be asked to consider 
outcomes they would like to achieve in relation to the requirements of the Council and achieving the 
Corporate Plan, personal aspirations and developing core skills. 
 

 
Training will be delivered in a variety of forms, including in-house Member Seminars, briefings 
training at Committee / Panel meetings, E Learning, PowerPoint presentations and by sharing 
experiences with each other. Bespoke training will be provided by a mixture of internal Officers and 
external providers as and when necessary.  
 
Additionally, Members can identify external training that may enhance their knowledge and improve 
their skills in carrying out their role.  In these instances Members should notify the Democracy 
Manager of the training, including details of nature of the course, location and cost and complete 
Appendix C.   
 
Members will be asked to complete a pre-course evaluation survey (attached as Appendix C) to 
assess relevance of the course and contribution it will make to enhancing Members skills to carry 
out their role.  
 
 

 

The Democracy Manager will monitor the budget for Member training and development and 
evaluate whether it meets the objectives identified within this strategy for Member Development. 
The 2016/17 budget for Member training and development is £10,000. This incorporates internal, 
external courses and conferences and seminars. 
 
Courses requiring expenditure must be booked by the Democratic Services Team and reported to 
the Democracy Manager. Member Development has dedicated support from the Democratic 
Services Team. It is the role of the Democracy Manager to coordinate the Member Development 

 
How will training be delivered? 

 

 
Identifying Member Development Requirements 

 

 
Resources and Support 

 

Page 64



Program, arrange facilitators, collate feedback and promote Member Development across the 
Council.  
 
All councillors are aware of this support and are encouraged to contact the team should they wish to 
go on a course or look to develop an area of skills but are unsure as to how to go about it. 
 

 
Member learning and development activities are open for all Members to attend and it is intended 
that all such activities should be equally accessible and conform to the Council’s equal opportunities 
policy and practice.   

 
In recognition of the varying development needs and preferred learning styles, the member 
development programme will include a range of delivery methods including workshops, 
presentations, written resources, and e-learning.  
 
Timing of in-house Training 

 
Meeting arrangements are flexible in order to provide sessions to accommodate the needs of 
Members. When additional training or briefing sessions are organised, consideration will be given to 
the best time of day to schedule the meeting and Members will be consulted where appropriate.  

 
Access to Information and Resources 

 
All presentations and other materials from development activities and briefing sessions will be made 
available to all members, including those who could not attend.  

 
Information about up-coming events is provided in writing and by email. Flyers may also be placed 
in the Members Rooms.  

 
Working in Partnership 

 
The Council will look to share training opportunities with its partners and other local councils such 
as parish and town councils, as appropriate. 
 
External Courses 
 
Members’ attendance on external training courses is supported where the course is relevant to the 
member’s learning and development needs and is cost-effective. Details of courses and 
development opportunities will be circulated to all Members to ensure they are available on an 
equal basis.  
 
Requests for external training will be determined by the Democracy Manager. Requests for training 
or development which have significant financial or policy implications will be submitted to the 
Assistant Chief Executive, Governance.  
 
E-Learning 
 
The Council will endeavour to further develop the opportunities provided to Members for e-learning 
through ELA (Electronic Learning Ashfield).  
 

 
Delivering the Member Development Programme 

 

Page 65



 
All learning and development activities should be evaluated to provide information on effectiveness 
and value for money. Evaluation of learning and development activities will seek to assess the 
impact of the training in relation to achieving Members’ priority training needs and the impact on the 
Council in achieving the aims of the Corporate Plan. Following the conclusion of events, Members 
will be asked to complete a feedback form, which will be issued by the Democracy Manager.  

 
Where appropriate, follow-up feedback forms, giving Members an opportunity to reflect on how they 
have put the learning into practice, may be given to Members to complete a few months following a 
learning and development event, either on paper or electronically.  
 

 
The Council recognises that effective member development includes support and opportunities in 
addition to training. The Council will, therefore, provide the following to Members; 
 

 Advice and support within the Democratic Services Team 

 Access to IT equipment, information, stationery and office space in the Members’ Room / Group 
Rooms  

 Access to relevant Council and other information electronically through the Members Digest  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Evaluation of Member Development 

 

 
Other Member Development Support 

 

Page 66



 
 
 
Appendix B – Training Needs Survey 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: To be completed by Councillors annually and returned to the Democracy Manager. 

 
 
 

 
 

Position  

 
 
Leader / Portfolio Holder / Chairman / Opposition / Scrutiny 
Member etc etc 
 
 

 
Please identify which of the 
following training areas you 

would like to consider 
 

 

 Chairing Skills 
 
 

 Public Speaking 
 
 

 Communications 
 
 

 Report writing 
 
 

 Leadership Skills 
 
 

 Local Government Finance 
 
 

 Effective Opposition 
 

 
 

 
Please identify any other areas 
of Councillor Development that 

you would like to consider 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
What is Your Preferred 

Training Method 

 

 
Please notify us if you have any additional requirements / needs / adjustments to enable 
you to access or undertake training.  
 Page 67



 
 
 
 
 
Appendix C – Pre-Course Evaluation Form 
 
 
 
Note: To be completed by Councillor and returned to the Democracy Manager prior to the booking of 
any training / seminars / courses. This form is designed to help assess the added value of courses in 
carrying out your role as a Councillor for both constituents and the Council. 

 
 
 

 
 

Course & Provider 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Cost Of Course 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Position 

 
 
Leader / Portfolio Holder / Chairman / Opposition / Scrutiny 
Member etc etc 
 
 

 
 

How will this course assist you 
in carrying out your Member 

role 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

How does this course 
contribute to the Councils 

priorities 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 68



 
 
 
 
Appendix D – Post Course Evaluation Form 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: To be completed by Councillor and returned to the Democracy Manager after any external 
training course. This form is designed to help assess the added value of courses in carrying out your 
role as a Councillor for both constituents and the Council. 

 
 
 

 
Position 

 

 
Leader / Portfolio Holder / Chairman / 
Opposition / Scrutiny Member etc etc 
 
 

 
Training or Course Undertaken 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Who was it Delivered By 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Aim / Objective of Course 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Achievement of event aims and objectives  
 
 

 
1 – Poor  

2 - Adequate  
3 - Satisfactory  

4 – Good 
5 -  Excellent 

 

 
Did this course / training assist you in carrying 

out your Member role 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Would you recommend this course / training to 
others? 

 

           Please Circle 
 

Yes 
 

No 
 

 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Report To: 
STANDARDS AND 
PERSONNEL APPEALS 
COMMITTEE 

Date: 12 DECEMBER 2016 

Heading: QUARTERLY COMPLAINTS MONITORING REPORT 

Portfolio Holder: N/A 

Ward/s:  N/A 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject To Call-In: NO 

Purpose Of Report 
 

This report provides an update in respect of Members’ Code of Conduct complaints. 

Recommendation(s) 

The Committee is requested to note the updated position in respect of Members’ Code 

of Conduct complaints as set out in the Appendix for the period commencing on 1 

October 2016 to 2 December 2016. 

Reasons For Recommendation(s) 

 
To reflect good practice. To enable Members to monitor the volume and progress of 
complaints. 
 

Alternative Options Considered (With Reasons Why Not Adopted) 

No alternative options are considered appropriate. 
 
 

 
Detailed Information 
 

This report outlines in the Appendix the number of complaints of alleged Member misconduct 
which are outstanding and a summary overview of the status of ongoing complaints. 
 
Complaint ADC2016-01 is now the subject of an investigation. The complaint will be 
investigated in house to avoid external costs. 
 Page 71

Agenda Item 7



No further information in relation to complaint ADC2016-02 has been received at the time of 
writing this report; the complainant has been given a deadline of 16 December 2016 to 
provide information after which the matter will be closed if not received. 
 
One new complaint was received on 30 November relating to a Parish Councillor. Information 
is being gathered to enable an assessment to be made. 
 
 
Implications 

Corporate Plan:  

The Council will strive to ensure effective community leadership, through good governance, 
transparency. Accountability and appropriate behaviours. 
 
Legal: 
 
There are no legal implications associated with this monitoring report. 

 
Finance: 

This report is effective from 02/12/2016 and has the following financial implications: 
 

 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

 
General Fund – Revenue Budget 

The Authority incurs costs in investigating complaints 
of alleged Member misconduct, and these charges are 
borne by the General Fund.  
 

 
General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

N/A 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

N/A 

 
Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

N/A 

 
Human Resources / Equality and Diversity: 
 

There are no HR or Equality and Diversity implications associated with this monitoring report. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 72



Other Implications: 
 

None. 

 
Reason(s) for Urgency (if applicable): 
 

N/A 

 
Background Papers 
N/A 

 
 

 
Report Author and Contact Officer 

Ruth Dennis 
Assistant Chief Executive (Governance)  
& Monitoring Officer 
01623 457009 
r.dennis@ashfield-dc.gov.uk 
 
Rob Mitchell 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

Page 73

mailto:r.dennis@ashfield-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
QUARTERLY UPDATE OF COMPLAINTS FROM 1 OCTOBER 2016 TO 2 DECEMBER 2016 

 
 

REFERENCE 

DATE 
COMPLAINT 
RECEIVED 
BY 
MONITORING 
OFFICER 

COMPLAINANT 
TYPE 

COMPLAINT 
ABOUT A DISTRICT 
OR  
PARISH 
COUNCILLOR  

 
ALLEGED 
BREACH 

LOCAL ASSESSMENT 
DECISION (MONITORING 
OFFICER IN 
CONSULTATION WITH 
INDEPENDENT PERSON) 

DATE OF 
ASSESSMENT 
DECISION 

ADC2016-
01 

6 April 2016 District 
Councillor 

District Councillor 2.1 Respect 
2.2 Contrary to 
high standards 
of conduct. 
2.3 Bullying 

Considered alternative 
options prior to assessment.  
 
Assessed in consultation 
with the Independent 
Person. Referred for 
investigation. 
 

2 December 
2016 

ADC2016-
02 

25 May 2016 District 
Councillor 

District Councillor 2.1 Respect 
2.2 Contrary to 
high standards 
of conduct. 
2.3 Bullying 

Considered alternative 
options prior to assessment. 
 
Further information required 
before assessment can be 
made. If information not 
received by 16 December 
2016 the complaint with be 
closed with no further action. 
 

 

P
age 75



ADC2016-
03 

30 November 
2016 

Parish 
Councillor 

Parish Councillor 2.1 Respect 
2.2 Contrary to 
high standards 
of conduct. 
 

Information is being 
gathered to enable an 
assessment to be made. 

 

 

P
age 76


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Members' Remuneration Scheme: Performance Related Element
	Members Remuneration Scheme - Appendix A

	5 Members Code of Conduct - Declarations of Interest
	Code of Conduct - Appendix 1
	Code of Conduct - Appendix 2
	Code of Conduct - Appendix 3

	6 Draft Member Development Strategy
	7 Quarterly Complaints Monitoring Report
	Quarterly Complaints - Attachment




